
TOWN OF CHARLOTTE 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

APRIL 4, 2013 

 

      APPROVED 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Peter Joslin, Acting Chair; Gerald Bouchard, Paul Landler, Linda 

Radimer. Absent: Jeff McDonald, Jim Donovan. 

ADMINISTRATION: Dean Bloch, Town Planner; Tom Mansfield, Zoning Administrator.  

OTHERS: Michael Hinsdale, Zoe Williams, Ellen Bosworth, Bill Bosworth, Chris Mack, and 

others. 

 

6:00 p.m. SITE VISIT: 3825 Ethan Allen Highway to inspect proposed 2 lot subdivision and 

new highway access 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

MOTION by Mr. Landler, seconded by Ms. Radimer, to elect Peter Joslin as Acting Chair. 

VOTE: 4 ayes, 2 absent (Mr. McDonald, Mr. Donovan); motion carried. 
 

Mr. Joslin, Acting Chair, called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. 

 

APPROVE REGULAR AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 

The Regular Agenda was approved with an addition to review the Senior Center decision under 

Deliberations. 

 

Consent Agenda: none. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

None. 

 

APPROVE MINUTES FROM: February 21, March 7, and March 21, 2013 

Approval of the Planning Commission minutes of March 7, 2013, was deferred to the next Planning 

Commission meeting. 

 

MICHAEL HINSDALE; SKETCH PLAN REVIEW; 2 LOT SUBDIVISION; 3825 ETHAN 

ALLEN HIGHWAY 
Michael Hinsdale, applicant, appeared on behalf of the application. 

 

STAFF NOTES 

Mr. Joslin reviewed staff notes, and commented on a site visit, this date, at the Hinsdale property 

located at 3825 Ethan Allen Highway. Mr. Hinsdale was present. Planning Commission members 

met at the existing house; not the barn. The four boundaries of a proposed 1.2 acre lot were 

identified and a proposed new curb cut location was inspected, said Mr. Joslin. 

 

APPLICANT COMMENTS 

Mr. Hinsdale explained a 2 lot subdivision of an existing 12.36 acre lot with two single family 

residences. A small 1.5 acre Lot 1 with the original house would be subdivided and the balance of 

the property would go with the existing barn as Lot 2. The proposed subdivision fit with current 

zoning regulations. The structures were not being modified. Fire damage at the main house would 

be repaired, explained Mr. Hinsdale. 



CHARLOTTE PLANNING COMMISSION               04/04/2013 PAGE 2  

 

PLANNING COMMISSION QUESTIONS/COMMENTS 

Mr. Joslin asked for clarification regarding an existing open space agreement. Mr. Hinsdale said 

that the open space covered about one-half of the property. 

 

Mr. Joslin asked if the existing right-of-way access easement to Lot 2 would remain on Lot 1. 

Would the existing water well continue as a shared well, asked Mr. Joslin. Mr. Hinsdale replied that 

the existing shared well was located to the south of the main house almost to a fence line. 

 

In response to questions, Mr. Hinsdale said that the current 12.5 acre lot contained a barn residence 

and the main house. Density on Lot 1 would be made up by providing an adequate amount of 

acreage that would be deed restricted, said Mr. Hinsdale.  

 

Mr. Joslin asked if the proposed 1.29 acre Lot 1 would be a PRD. 

 

Mr. Bloch noted that the State of Vermont had jurisdiction over the Town regarding the proposed 

new driveway since it was on Route 7. Mr. Hinsdale reported that he had met with VTrans 

representatives yesterday. About 100’ of the proposed driveway would go through the orchard. 

What clearing that was necessary was already done. Most of the orchard was to the north. The part 

of the driveway that went through open space wouldn’t disturb anything, said Mr. Hinsdale. 

 

Mr. Joslin asked for clarification of the barn lot septic easement and replacement septic. Mr. 

Hinsdale replied that the septic was to the west on the back side of the barn lot. It was an engineered 

field, said Mr. Hinsdale. 

 

Mr. Joslin noted that the open space was around the barn and fenced area. It would be more 

valuable if it was to the north versus the south, suggested Mr. Joslin. Mr. Hinsdale said he was 

trying to meet Town requirements. The barn lot would have some language restricting further 

development, stated Mr. Hinsdale. 

 

Ms. Radimer expressed concern regarding an earlier proposal related to natural resource values that 

were higher on the north side of the property. 

 

Mr. Landler asked if there was an accessory apartment in the barn. Once the proposed subdivision 

was approved would the barn become a separate dwelling, asked Mr. Landler. Mr. Mansfield 

replied that it was an accessory apartment and would become a separate dwelling. Mr. Hinsdale 

reviewed a brief history of the dairy barn that had an apartment in it. It was a separate dwelling, said 

Mr. Hinsdale. 

 

Mr. Joslin said that sight distances were good in both directions at the proposed access. Mr. 

Hinsdale said that the existing driveway would be eliminated and seeded with grass. He didn’t want 

anyone driving by the main house. It was a safety issue and there were water drainage issues. Water 

went down the nearly straight driveway and into Route 7. Culverts would be needed at the east-west 

edge and at Route 7, explained Mr. Hinsdale. 

 

Mr. Landler asked if the whole 12 acres should be open space since there were two residences on 

the 12 acres. Ms. Radimer clarified that there could be a smaller lot if it was a PRD, which would 

require 50 percent as open space. Mr. Landler asked if it was a PRD and the open space in the barn 

area was eliminated would that put open space in the unprotected area. Mr. Bloch said that the 

applicant could acquire density elsewhere and use it for a PRD. Ms. Radimer said that if the open 



CHARLOTTE PLANNING COMMISSION               04/04/2013 PAGE 3  

space, or barn was changed then the applicant would have to come back to the Town for 

modification of the open space agreement. 

 

Mr. Hinsdale said that VTrans would not grant the proposed access if the Town objected. He would 

ask the Town not to tie the driveway access move into the subdivision, said Mr. Hinsdale. Mr. 

Bloch said it was a recommendation at this point. If the driveway was moved, the order of events 

would be to go see what the state would require. If the state was satisfied, then he could come back 

to the Town, suggested Mr. Bloch. Mr. Hinsdale said that when the lot was surveyed he would have 

the driveway shown on the survey map as well. 

 

Mr. Joslin said that as far as the Planning Commission was concerned the proposed access was fine. 

It was up to VTrans to decide. It was a moot point since there was an existing driveway already, 

pointed out Mr. Joslin. 

 

Mr. Landler asked if the right-of-way to Lot 2 would be eliminated with the existing driveway. Mr. 

Bloch asked if the easement language regarding the right-of-way to Lot 2 allowed the barn resident 

to have a say on the driveway. Mr. Hinsdale replied yes. If they didn’t agree with the change then 

he couldn’t change the driveway, said Mr. Hinsdale. 

 

Mr. Bloch suggested that the applicant would need a letter from the neighbor that they were in 

agreement. Mr. Joslin suggested that the first step was to get an agreement from the neighbor to the 

east. A second step would be to have the state approve the proposed access, said Mr. Joslin. 

 

Ms. Bosworth introduced herself and Bill Bosworth, and said they were the neighbors. They agreed 

with the change. Water runoff was an issue, said Ms. Bosworth. 

 

There was brief discussion regarding water runoff onto Route7 and icy issues it created.  

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

None. 

 

MOTION by Mr. Landler, seconded by Ms. Radimer, to classify the Michael Hinsdale Sketch 

Plan Review for a 2 lot subdivision, located at 3825 Ethan Allen Highway as a minor PRD 

subdivision. 

VOTE: 4 ayes, 2 absent (Mr. McDonald, Mr. Donovan); motion carried. 
 

Mr. Joslin explained that the applicant would receive a Sketch Plan letter from the Town. 

 

Mr. Hinsdale said he would keep the Town posted regarding the state’s decision of the proposed 

access/driveway. 

 

THERESA KNOWLES; FINAL PLAT HEARING; 2 LOT SUBDIVISION; NORTHEAST 

CORNER OF FERRY ROAD AND LAKE ROAD 
Ms. Knowles did not appear. No action was taken. 

 

KATE LAMPTON; DISCUSSION OF THE BURNS PROPERTY 
Ms. Lampton reviewed an existing Burns property MOA and conditions, and a grant between the 

Town, the Vermont Land Trust and the Preservation Vermont. A draft MOA crated by Gil 

Livingston was an attempt to simplify and clarify the agreement.  

 



CHARLOTTE PLANNING COMMISSION               04/04/2013 PAGE 4  

Ms. Lampton reviewed the following: 

 The west side of Greenbush Road was not under the control of the Town. The MOA dealt 

strictly with the east side of the road. 

 A simplified map was created. ‘Pink’ areas indicated Class II, Class III and Clay plain forest 

areas that would remain undeveloped. 

 The Selectboard has reviewed the draft MOA. 

 Input from the Trails Committee has been received. 

 There were no current proposals regarding the Burns property. 

 The Vermont Land Trust stated that the west meadow would be protected except for 

affordable housing, or agricultural uses. 

 Item #4 of the draft would require delineation of the Greenbush Road field. 

 

Planning Commission feedback follows: 

 A suggestion that the Greenbush Road field should encompass more than affordable housing 

to create an extended village, such as senior housing, low and moderate income housing, and 

small commercial shops.  

 Consider adding the north section of the 8.9 acre ‘green’ area, the Greenbush Road field and 

along Greenbush Road to the Village District for future development of a village center. 

Development should occur closer to the existing village for walkability and access via an 

‘arterial’ road (Greenbush Road). 

 Allow two senior housing buildings only at the Greenbush Road field up by the village edge 

and septic, limited to 20 units per building, with access off of Greenbush Road. 

 Delete smaller developable areas, such as the 0.5 acre pieces, from the percentage of 

‘developable land’ as presented in the draft MOA language and the map. 

 A suggestion that a septic line from the septic field could go to a 2.1 acre ‘green’ site for 

development. 

 Consider the small islands of green areas as possible cover for wildlife and as more valuable 

as habitat versus house lots. 

 Keep a proposed Town link trail from possible wildlife areas/corridors. 

 Identify what MOA language to tie into the Town Plan update. 

 Consider a CSA agricultural use for the 8.9 acre, or the 4.8 acre areas on Greenbush Road.  

 Consider extending commercial use along Route 7 at the current gas station/ice cream shop, 

but not at the Flea Market. 

 Identify uses for the Flea Market area. 

 

DELIBERATIONS 

The Planning Commission entered Deliberative Session to review a Sketch Plan letter related to the 

Senior Center application. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

MOTION by Mr. Landler, seconded by Ms. Radimer, to adjourn. 

VOTE: 4 ayes, 2 absent (Mr. McDonald, Mr. Donovan); motion carried.  

  

The Planning Commission meeting was adjourned at 9:00 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, Kathlyn L. Furr, Recording Secretary 

 


